Case: 1:17-cv-01352 Doc #: 1 Filed: 06/26/17 1 of 13. PageID #: 1

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
NORTHERN DISTRICT OF OHIO
EASTERN DIVISION
DAVIS WINSTON,
on behalf of himself and all others
similarly situated,
Plaintiff,
v.
CUYAHOGA METROPOLITAN
HOUSING AUTHORITY
c/o Jeffrey K. Patterson, CEO
8120 Kinsman Rd.
Cleveland, OH 44104
Defendant.

I.
1.

)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)

CASE NO.
JUDGE

CLASS ACTION COMPLAINT
Demand for Jury Trial on all issues triable
of right by a jury, pursuant to Fed. R. Civ.
P. 38.

PRELIMINARY STATEMENT

Plaintiff Davis Winston brings this action seeking declaratory and monetary relief

against Defendant Cuyahoga Metropolitan Housing Authority (“CMHA”) for its policy and
practice of not treating the month-to-month fees and the short-term lease fees of landlords as part
of the contract rent under the CMHA Housing Choice Voucher Program (“HCVP”). As a result
of this policy, CMHA has denied Winston and similarly situated plaintiffs a portion of their
respective HCVP rent subsidy benefits in violation of their rights under 42 U.S.C. § 1437f(o) and
24 C.F.R §§ 982.501-982.521.
2.

The HCVP is a federally-funded rent subsidy program for very low income

families and individuals. HCVP participants lease existing private rental units and a local public
housing agency (“PHA”), such as CMHA, pays the landlord on behalf of the participants to
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afford decent, safe, and sanitary rental housing. 24 C.F.R. § 982.1.
3.

Plaintiff brings his claim for declaratory and monetary relief pursuant to 42

U.S.C. § 1983.
II.
1.

JURISDICTION AND VENUE

This Court has original jurisdiction in this action under 28 U.S.C. § 1331 because

Plaintiff asserts claims against the Defendant under the laws of the United States.
2.

This Court has original jurisdiction in this action under 28 U.S.C. § 1343(a)(3)

because the Plaintiff asserts claims against the Defendant to redress deprivations under color of
state law of rights and privileges secured by Acts of Congress providing for equal rights of
citizens.
3.

This Court has original jurisdiction in this action under 28 U.S.C. § 1343(a)(4)

because Plaintiff asserts claims against Defendant to recover damages and to secure equitable
relief under an Act of Congress providing for the protection of civil rights.
4.

This Court is authorized to grant declaratory relief in this action under 28 U.S.C.

§ 2201 and Rule 57 of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure.
5.

Venue lies properly in this district pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1391. The Northern

District of Ohio is the judicial district in which: (i) all of the actions and omissions that give rise
to Plaintiff’s claims occurred, (ii) CMHA’s principal place of business is located, and (iii)
CMHA conducts its business.
III.
6.

THE PARTIES

Plaintiff is an adult individual and citizen of the United States who resides in

Cleveland, Ohio.
7.

At all times pertinent hereto, Plaintiff has been a participant in the CMHA HCVP.
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8.

Defendant CMHA is a body corporate and politic organized and existing under

the laws of the State of Ohio, Ohio Rev. Code Chapter 3735. CMHA has headquarters located at
8120 Kinsman Rd., Cleveland, Ohio 44104. Under the laws of the State of Ohio, CMHA has the
authority and duty to administer in Cuyahoga County, Ohio, housing programs for low-income
families and individuals. Pursuant to that authority and duty, CMHA administers the HCVP in
Cuyahoga County. CMHA has been and continues to be acting under color of state law in all of
its actions and omissions concerning the allegations in this Complaint.
9.

With respect to each allegation in this Complaint concerning an action or failure

to act of CMHA (or any other CMHA official, employee, or agent), CMHA (or the other CMHA
official, employee, or agent) acted or failed to act pursuant to a CMHA policy or custom and/or
pursuant to a decision of the person who has final decision-making authority for CMHA relative
to the particular action nor failure to act. The relevant CMHA policies are set forth in the
CMHA Administrative Plan for the HCVP, and other CMHA documents.
IV.
10.

FACTUAL ALLEGATIONS

Under Section 8 of the United States Housing Act of 1937, Congress has enacted

a variety of programs to promote the goal of providing an adequate supply of decent and
affordable housing for low-income individuals and families. 42 U.S.C. § 1437f(a). The U.S.
Department of Housing and Urban Development (“HUD”) provides funding for the Section 8
programs, which are administered either directly by HUD or through state or local housing
agencies known as PHAs. One of these programs is the HCVP. 42 U.S.C. § 1437f(o).
11.

Under the HCVP, HUD enters into annual contributions contracts (“ACCs”) with

PHAs under which: (i) HUD agrees to make payments to PHAs to cover the housing assistance
payments that PHAs make to private landlords on behalf of individuals and families who
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participate in the HCVP, and (ii) PHAs agree to administer the HCVP in accordance with HUD
regulations and requirements. 24 C.F.R. § 982.151(a).
12.

CMHA is a PHA and, at all times relevant to this action, HUD and CMHA have

been parties to an ACC pursuant to which CMHA has administered the HCVP.
13.

The PHA receives applications from the persons who seek to participate in the

HCVP, and the PHA determines their eligibility for participation in the HCVP. 24 C.F.R. §§
982.201-982.207.
14.

When a PHA selects an individual or family to participate in the HCVP, the

HCVP participant is responsible for finding an existing rental unit in the private market that the
participant desires to lease, that meets the requirements of the HCVP, and the owner of which is
willing to lease to the individual or family and participate in the HCVP. 24 C.F.R. §§ 982.302,
982.305. When the HCVP participant finds a prospective rental unit, a request for tenancy
approval is submitted to the PHA. 24 C.F.R. § 982.302.
15.

Upon receiving a request for tenancy approval under the HCVP, the PHA

determines whether the HCVP requirements are met with respect to, among other things, the rent
reasonableness of the contract rent, the housing quality of the rental unit, and other terms of the
lease. 24 C.F.R. § 982.305. The contract rent must be reasonable in relation to rents being
charged for comparable unassisted units. 24 C.F.R. § 982.507.
16.

After the PHA approves a HCVP tenancy, the PHA and the owner execute a

housing assistance payments contract (“HAP contract”) with respect to the tenancy. 24 C.F.R. §
982.1(b)(2). Under the HAP contract, the PHA makes the housing assistance payments to the
owner on behalf of the tenant. 24 C.F.R. §§ 982.1(b)(2), 982.451.
17.

For its computations of the amount of the HCVP rent subsidy, the PHA
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establishes a payment standard, which is a fixed-dollar amount, per bedroom size, generally
between 90% and 110% of HUD’s Fair Market Rent for the area. 42 U.S.C. § 1437f(o)(1)(B);
24 C.F.R. § 982.503.
18.

For fiscal year 2016, the CMHA payment standard is: 0 bedrooms (“BR”) - $570;

1 BR - $673; 2 BR - $783; 3 BR - $1,026; 4 BR - $1,155; 5 BR - $1,327; and 6 BR - $1,501.
19.

If the contract rent under the HCVP lease does not exceed the payment standards,

the HCVP participant is generally required to pay 30% of the household’s income for rent and
utilities. 42 U.S.C. § 1437f(o)(2)(B); 24 C.F.R. § 982.505.
20.

For a HCVP participant’s initial occupancy of a dwelling unit under a HCVP

lease, if the contract rent exceeds the payment standard, the HCVP participant’s obligation for
rent and utilities (defined as “family share” in 24 C.F.R. § 982.4) may not exceed 40% of the
household’s income. 42 U.S.C. § 1437f(o)(3); 24 C.F.R. § 982.508.
21.

If the HCVP lease requires the tenant to pay for one or more utility services (other

than telephone service), the HCVP participant receives a utility allowance, which is based on the
typical cost of utilities paid by energy-conservative households that occupy housing of similar
size and type in the same locality. 24 C.F.R. § 982.517.
22.

When a HCVP participant receives a utility allowance, the amount of the utility

allowance is deducted from the amount of the participant’s obligation for rent and utilities. If the
amount of the utility allowance exceeds the HCVP participant’s obligation for rent and utilities,
the PHA makes a monthly utility reimbursement payment to the participant in the amount that
the utility allowance exceeds the participant’s obligation for rent and utilities.
23.

In the HCVP, the contract rent is the “rent to owner” (see 24 C.F.R. § 982.4) if the

landlord pays for all of the utilities, and is the “gross rent” (see 24 C.F.R. § 982.4) if the tenant
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pays for one or more of the utilities. Gross rent is the sum of the rent to owner and the utility
allowance. In either case, based on the definition of rent to owner, the contract rent includes “the
total monthly rent payment to the owner under the lease for the unit” and the “payments for any
housing services, maintenance, and utilities that the owner is required to provide and pay for.”
24 C.F.R. § 982.4 (definition of “rent to owner”).
24.

Under the HCVP and under Ohio law, the term “rent” means an amount paid as

consideration for the use or occupancy of real property.
25.

The PHA may terminate a Tenant’s participation in the HCVP only for cause.

The only permissible causes for termination are the grounds – the Tenant’s actions or failure to
act – that are set forth in 24 C.F.R. §§ 982.552, 982.553, which include any violation of the
Tenant obligations that are set forth in 24 C.F.R. § 982.551.
26.

HCVP participants are entitled to an opportunity for an informal hearing, and

written notice of the hearing opportunity, whenever a PHA proposes to terminate the Tenant’s
participation in the HCVP because of the Tenant’s action or failure to act. 24 C.F.R. §§
982.555(a)(1)(v), 982.555(c)(2). The PHA must provide the HCVP participants with this
hearing opportunity before the PHA terminates the housing assistance payments that it makes on
behalf of the Tenant. 24 C.F.R. § 982.555(a)(2).
27.

In Cuyahoga County, Ohio, because of the extreme shortage of affordable

housing for low-income individuals and families, and because the demand for rent subsidies far
exceeds supply, participation in the HCVP is a highly valued benefit among low-income
individuals and families.
28.

For part of the time relevant to this action K&D Management, LLC (“K&D”) has

owned the rental property known as Parkside Gardens located in Euclid, Ohio. At some point
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between January 2013 and September 2015, ownership of this property was transferred to
ROCO-Parkside, LLC.
29.

At all times relevant to this action, with respect to Parkside Gardens, the policy

and practice has been to permit tenants to select a lease term. If a tenant selects a month-tomonth lease term, the owner of Parkside Gardens requires that the tenant pay monthly a specified
amount that is designated in the lease as rent and to pay monthly a specified amount that is
designated in the lease as an applicable month-to-month fee. If tenants select a one-year lease
term, Parkside Gardens requires the tenant to pay monthly a specified amount that is designated
in the lease as rent, and does not require the tenant to pay the month-to-month fee. The amount
designated in the lease as rent, if the tenant selects the month-to-month lease term, is the same
amount as the amount designated in the lease as rent, if the tenant selects the one-year lease term.
The month-to-month fee is contained in the lease, if the tenant selects the month-to-month lease
term, solely because the tenant has selected a month-to-month lease option.
30.

At all times relevant to this action, with respect to Parkside Gardens, the policy

and practice of the owner of Parkside Gardens has been to include in the leases of Parkside
Gardens tenants a provision that states that, if the tenant remains in possession of the dwelling
unit after the expiration of a lease term and a new lease has not been executed, the tenant is
subject to a month-to-month fee, as described in paragraph 29 above.
31.

At all times relevant to this action, the practice of CMHA has been not to treat the

month-to-month fees and the short-term lease fees of landlords as part of the contract rent under
the HCVP. Under this practice, CMHA has not treated the month-to-month fees and the shortterm lease fees as part of the contract rent: when CMHA has computed the amount of the HCVP
rent subsidies that CMHA has paid on behalf of HCVP participants; when CMHA has computed
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the amount of the utility reimbursement payments that CMHA has paid to HCVP participants;
when CMHA has determined the reasonableness of the contract rents in a HCVP lease; or when
CMHA has applied its procedures for increases in contracts rents. Under this practice, CMHA
has required the HCVP participants to pay the full amount of the month-to-month fees and the
short-term lease fees, independent of their HCVP rent subsidy benefits.
32.

On or about January 21, 2013, and with the approval of CMHA, Plaintiff Winston

entered into a HCVP lease for a unit at Parkside Gardens in Euclid, Ohio (the “Winston Lease”).
33.

The initial term of the Winston Lease was one year, commencing January 16,

2013 and ending on January 31, 2014. For the initial one-year term of the Winston lease, the
lease designated as rent the amount of $541 per month. The Winston Lease also contained an
automatic renewal for a month-to-month lease term.
34.

Under the Winston Lease, Plaintiff was required to pay for all of the utility

services for the rental units, except gas, water and sewer services.
35.

In January 2013, CMHA and K&D entered into a HAP Contract (“Winston HAP

Contract) under which CMHA was obligated to make HCVP rent subsidy payments to the owner
of Parkside Gardens, on behalf of Winston, in connection with the Winston Lease. The Winston
HAP Contract remained in effect during the entire period that Winston occupied the rental unit in
Parkside Gardens under the Winston Lease. During the entire period that Winston occupied the
unit, Winston was a HCVP tenant. Either K&D or ROCO-Parkside LLC were his landlord under
the Winston Lease.
36.

Upon the expiration of the initial term of the Winston Lease, Winston elected not

to execute a new lease for his occupancy of the Winston rental unit, and the Winston lease was
renewed on a month-to-month lease term pursuant to the automatic lease renewal provision.
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37.

From February 1, 2014 until on or about October 31, 2015 Winston resided at the

Parkside Gardens rental unit pursuant to a month-to-month lease term.
38.

Pursuant to the Winston Lease and the K&D month-to-month fee policy, from

February 2014 through October 2015, K&D assessed Winston the amount of $541 per month
and $100 per month as the month-to-month fee.
39.

By virtue of its approval of the Winston Lease and its knowledge that Mr.

Winston did not leave the premises at Euclid Gardens when the original term of the Lease ended
in January of 2014, CMHA necessarily knew that Mr. Winston was leasing on a month-to-month
basis and that the month-to-month fees imposed by the Lease were in effect.
40.

Pursuant to the CMHA practice for month-to-month fees, CMHA did not treat the

Winston month-to-month fees as part of the contract rent under the Winston Lease for any
purpose, including when it computed the amount of the HCVP Rent subsidy payments that
CMHA made on behalf of Winston under the Winston HAP contracts.
41.

If the policy and practice of CMHA had been to treat the month-to-month fees of

landlords, including the Winston month-to-month fees, as part of the contract rent, the amount of
the HCVP rent subsidy payment that CMHA made on behalf of Winston under the HAP
contracts, and/or the amount of the utility reimbursement payments that CMHA made to Winston
in connection with the Winston Lease, would have been a higher amount than the amount that
CMHA paid.
42.

Under the HCVP and Ohio law, the Winston month-to-month fees are part of the

contract rent under the Winston Lease.
43.

Plaintiff Winston paid the full amount of the month-to-month fees from February

2014 through October 2015.
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44.

CMHA’s failure to treat the month-to-month fees as part of the contract rent

caused Winston to suffer significant financial hardship.
V.
45.

CLASS ACTION ALLEGATIONS

Plaintiff brings this action individually and as a class action for CMHA’s

violation of 42 U.S.C. § 1437f(o), 42 U.S.C. § 1983, and 24 C.F.R. 982.501-982.521, pursuant to
Rules 23(a) and 23(b) of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure, on behalf of the following Class:
All participants in the CMHA HCVP who were approved for a
HCVP tenancy for which the property owner executed a HAP
contract with CMHA and who paid month-to-month and/or shortterm lease fees, pursuant to a reference to such fees in their lease,
independent of their HCVP rent subsidy benefits within two (2)
years of the filing of this action and through final judgment.
46.

This Class is so numerous that joinder of all members is impracticable. Although

the precise number of Class members is known only to CMHA, Plaintiff avers upon information
and belief that the class numbers in the hundreds.
47.

There are questions of law and fact common to the Class that pre-dominate over

any questions affecting only individual Class member, as CMHA uses common practices in
committing conduct that Plaintiff alleges damaged him and the class members. These questions
include:


Whether Defendant should have considered the month-to-month and
short-term fees paid by Plaintiff and the other class members as part of
their rent;



Whether Defendant violated 42 U.S.C. § 1437f(o) by failing to include
Plaintiff and the other class members’ month-to-month and short-term fees
as part of the contract rent;



Whether Defendant violated 24 C.F.R. §§ 982.501-982.521 by failing to
include Plaintiff and the other class members’ month-to-month and shortterm fees as part of the contract rent;



Whether Defendant improperly calculated Plaintiff and the other class
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members’ voucher amounts by failing to include month-to-month and
short-term fees as a part of the contract rent.
48.

Plaintiff’s claims are typical of the claims of the Class, which all arise from the

same operative facts and are based on the same legal theories.
49.

Plaintiff will fairly and adequately protect the interest of the Class. Plaintiff is

committed to vigorously litigate this matter. Plaintiff has secured counsel experienced in
handling civil litigation, including class claims. Neither Plaintiff nor his counsel has any interests
which might cause them not to vigorously pursue these claims.
50.

This action should be maintained as a class action because the prosecution of

separate actions by individual members which would establish incompatible standards of
conduct for the parties opposing the Class, as well as a risk of adjudications with respect to
individual members which would as a practical matter be dispositive of the interest of other
members not parties to the adjudications or substantially impair of impede their ability to protect
their interests.
51.

A class action is a superior method for the fair and efficient adjudication of this

controversy. The interest of class members in individually controlling the prosecution of separate
claims against CMHA is small. Management of the class claims is likely to present significantly
fewer difficulties than those presented in many individual claims. The identities of the class
members may be obtained from CMHA’s records.
FIRST CAUSE OF ACTION
Violation of the U.S. Housing Act of 1937 – 42 U.S.C. §§ 1437f, 1983
(Against Defendant CMHA)
52.

Plaintiff incorporates the foregoing paragraphs as though the same were set forth

53.

Defendant CMHA violated Plaintiff’s and the other class members’ rights under

herein.

- 11 -

Case: 1:17-cv-01352 Doc #: 1 Filed: 06/26/17 12 of 13. PageID #: 12

42 U.S.C. § 1437 et seq. and 24 C.F.R. §§ 982.501-982.521 by failing to include their month-tomonth fees and/or short-term fees as a part of the contract rent under the HCVP.
54.

As a direct and proximate result of Defendant CMHA’s violation of these rights,

Plaintiff and the other class members have suffered economic damages.
55.

Defendant CMHA is liable to Plaintiff and the other class members under 42

U.S.C. § 1983 for the deprivation of their rights.
VI.
56.

PRAYER FOR RELIEF

WHEREFORE, Plaintiff seeks the following relief in favor of himself and the

Class:
(a)

That an order be entered certifying the Class under Rule 23 of the Federal
Rules of Civil Procedure and appointing Plaintiff and his counsel to
represent the Class;

(b)

That an order be entered finding and declaring that Defendant has violated
the rights of Plaintiff as alleged in this Complaint;

(c)

Award compensatory damages to Plaintiff and against Defendant pursuant
to 42 U.S.C. § 1983, in an amount to be proven at trial;

(d)

Award to Plaintiff the costs and reasonable attorney’s fees pursuant to 42
U.S.C. § 1988; and

(e)

That the Court grant such other and further relief as may be just and
proper.
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Respectfully submitted,
COHEN ROSENTHAL & KRAMER LLP
/s/ Ellen M. Kramer
Ellen M. Kramer (0055552)
emk@crklaw.com
Joshua R. Cohen (0032368)
jcohen@crklaw.com
Joshua B. Fuchs (0087066)
jfuchs@crklaw.com
The Hoyt Block Building – Suite 400
700 West St. Clair Avenue
Cleveland, Ohio 44113
216-781-7956 [Telephone]
216-781-8061 [Facsimile]
Counsel for Plaintiff
JURY DEMAND
Plaintiff demands a trial by jury on all eligible claims and issues.
/s/ Ellen M. Kramer
One of the Attorneys for Plaintiff
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
NORTHERN DISTRICT OF OHIO
I.

Civil Categories: (Please check one category only).

1. ✔
2.
3.

General Civil
Administrative Review/Social Security
Habeas Corpus Death Penalty

*If under Title 28, §2255, name the SENTENCING JUDGE:
CASE NUMBER:

II.

RELATED OR REFILED CASES. See LR 3.1 which provides in pertinent part: "If an action is filed or removed to this Court
and assigned to a District Judge after which it is discontinued, dismissed or remanded to a State court, and
subsequently refiled, it shall be assigned to the same Judge who received the initial case assignment without regardfor
the place of holding court in which the case was refiled. Counsel or a party without counsel shall be responsible for
bringing such cases to the attention of the Court by responding to the questions included on the Civil Cover Sheet."
This action is

✔

RELATED to another PENDING civil case. This action is

REFILED pursuant to LR 3.1.

If applicable, please indicate on page 1 in section VIII, the name of the Judge and case number.

III.

In accordance with Local Civil Rule 3.8, actions involving counties in the Eastern Division shall be filed at any of the
divisional offices therein. Actions involving counties in the Western Division shall be filed at the Toledo office. For the
purpose of determining the proper division, and for statistical reasons, the following information is requested.
ANSWER ONE PARAGRAPH ONLY. ANSWER PARAGRAPHS 1 THRU 3 IN ORDER. UPON FINDING WHICH
PARAGRAPH APPLIES TO YOUR CASE, ANSWER IT AND STOP.
(1)
Resident defendant. If the defendant resides in a county within this district, please set forth the name of such
county
COUNTY: Cuyahoga
Corporation For the purpose of answering the above, a corporation is deemed to be a resident of that county in which
it has its principal place of business in that district.
Non-Resident defendant. If no defendant is a resident of a county in this district, please set forth the county
wherein the cause of action arose or the event complained of occurred.
COUNTY:
(2)

(3)

Other Cases. If no defendant is a resident of this district, or if the defendant is a corporation not having a principle
place of business within the district, and the cause of action arose or the event complained of occurred outside
this district, please set forth the county of the plaintiff's residence.
COUNTY:

IV.

The Counties in the Northern District of Ohio are divided into divisions as shown below. After the county is
determined in Section III, please check the appropriate division.
EASTERN DIVISION

✔

AKRON
CLEVELAND
YOUNGSTOWN

(Counties: Carroll, Holmes, Portage, Stark, Summit, Tuscarawas and Wayne)
(Counties: Ashland, Ashtabula, Crawford, Cuyahoga, Geauga, Lake,
Lorain, Medina and Richland)
(Counties: Columbiana, Mahoning and Trumbull)

WESTERN DIVISION
TOLEDO

(Counties: Allen, Auglaize, Defiance, Erie, Fulton, Hancock, Hardin, Henry,
Huron, Lucas, Marion, Mercer, Ottawa, Paulding, Putnam, Sandusky, Seneca
VanWert, Williams, Wood and Wyandot)
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INSTRUCTIONS FOR ATTORNEYS COMPLETING CIVIL COVER SHEET FORM JS 44
Authority For Civil Cover Sheet
The JS 44 civil cover sheet and the information contained herein neither replaces nor supplements the filings and service of pleading or other papers as
required by law, except as provided by local rules of court. This form, approved by the Judicial Conference of the United States in September 1974, is
required for the use of the Clerk of Court for the purpose of initiating the civil docket sheet. Consequently, a civil cover sheet is submitted to the Clerk of
Court for each civil complaint filed. The attorney filing a case should complete the form as follows:
I.(a)

(b)

(c)

Plaintiffs-Defendants. Enter names (last, first, middle initial) of plaintiff and defendant. If the plaintiff or defendant is a government agency, use
only the full name or standard abbreviations. If the plaintiff or defendant is an official within a government agency, identify first the agency and
then the official, giving both name and title.
County of Residence. For each civil case filed, except U.S. plaintiff cases, enter the name of the county where the first listed plaintiff resides at the
time of filing. In U.S. plaintiff cases, enter the name of the county in which the first listed defendant resides at the time of filing. (NOTE: In land
condemnation cases, the county of residence of the "defendant" is the location of the tract of land involved.)
Attorneys. Enter the firm name, address, telephone number, and attorney of record. If there are several attorneys, list them on an attachment, noting
in this section "(see attachment)".

II.

Jurisdiction. The basis of jurisdiction is set forth under Rule 8(a), F.R.Cv.P., which requires that jurisdictions be shown in pleadings. Place an "X"
in one of the boxes. If there is more than one basis of jurisdiction, precedence is given in the order shown below.
United States plaintiff. (1) Jurisdiction based on 28 U.S.C. 1345 and 1348. Suits by agencies and officers of the United States are included here.
United States defendant. (2) When the plaintiff is suing the United States, its officers or agencies, place an "X" in this box.
Federal question. (3) This refers to suits under 28 U.S.C. 1331, where jurisdiction arises under the Constitution of the United States, an amendment
to the Constitution, an act of Congress or a treaty of the United States. In cases where the U.S. is a party, the U.S. plaintiff or defendant code takes
precedence, and box 1 or 2 should be marked.
Diversity of citizenship. (4) This refers to suits under 28 U.S.C. 1332, where parties are citizens of different states. When Box 4 is checked, the
citizenship of the different parties must be checked. (See Section III below; NOTE: federal question actions take precedence over diversity
cases.)

III.

Residence (citizenship) of Principal Parties. This section of the JS 44 is to be completed if diversity of citizenship was indicated above. Mark this
section for each principal party.

IV.

Nature of Suit. Place an "X" in the appropriate box. If there are multiple nature of suit codes associated with the case, pick the nature of suit code
that is most applicable. Click here for: Nature of Suit Code Descriptions.

V.

Origin. Place an "X" in one of the seven boxes.
Original Proceedings. (1) Cases which originate in the United States district courts.
Removed from State Court. (2) Proceedings initiated in state courts may be removed to the district courts under Title 28 U.S.C., Section 1441.
When the petition for removal is granted, check this box.
Remanded from Appellate Court. (3) Check this box for cases remanded to the district court for further action. Use the date of remand as the filing
date.
Reinstated or Reopened. (4) Check this box for cases reinstated or reopened in the district court. Use the reopening date as the filing date.
Transferred from Another District. (5) For cases transferred under Title 28 U.S.C. Section 1404(a). Do not use this for within district transfers or
multidistrict litigation transfers.
Multidistrict Litigation – Transfer. (6) Check this box when a multidistrict case is transferred into the district under authority of Title 28 U.S.C.
Section 1407.
Multidistrict Litigation – Direct File. (8) Check this box when a multidistrict case is filed in the same district as the Master MDL docket.
PLEASE NOTE THAT THERE IS NOT AN ORIGIN CODE 7. Origin Code 7 was used for historical records and is no longer relevant due to
changes in statue.

VI.

Cause of Action. Report the civil statute directly related to the cause of action and give a brief description of the cause. Do not cite jurisdictional
statutes unless diversity. Example: U.S. Civil Statute: 47 USC 553 Brief Description: Unauthorized reception of cable service

VII.

Requested in Complaint. Class Action. Place an "X" in this box if you are filing a class action under Rule 23, F.R.Cv.P.
Demand. In this space enter the actual dollar amount being demanded or indicate other demand, such as a preliminary injunction.
Jury Demand. Check the appropriate box to indicate whether or not a jury is being demanded.

VIII. Related Cases. This section of the JS 44 is used to reference related pending cases, if any. If there are related pending cases, insert the docket
numbers and the corresponding judge names for such cases.
Date and Attorney Signature. Date and sign the civil cover sheet.
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
for the

Northern
District
of Ohio
__________
District
of __________
Davis Winston
Plaintiff

v.
Cuyhoga Metropolitan Housing Authority
Defendant

)
)
)
)
)
)
)

Civil Action No. 1:17-cv-1352

SUMMONS IN A CIVIL ACTION
To: (Defendant’s name and address) Cuyhoga Metropolitan Housing Authority
c/o Jeffrey K. Patterson, Executive Director
8120 Kinsman Road, Cleveland, Ohio 44104

A lawsuit has been filed against you.
Within 21 days after service of this summons on you (not counting the day you received it) — or 60 days if you
are the United States or a United States agency, or an officer or employee of the United States described in Fed. R. Civ.
P. 12 (a)(2) or (3) — you must serve on the plaintiff an answer to the attached complaint or a motion under Rule 12 of
the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure. The answer or motion must be served on the plaintiff or plaintiff’s attorney,
whose name and address are: Ellen M. Kramer, Esq.
Cohen Rosenthal & Kramer LLP
700 W. St. Clair Ave., Suite 400
Cleveland, Ohio 44113

If you fail to respond, judgment by default will be entered against you for the relief demanded in the complaint.
You also must file your answer or motion with the court.

SANDY OPACICH, CLERK OF COURT
Date:
Signature of Clerk or Deputy Clerk
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Civil Action No. 1:17-cv-1352
PROOF OF SERVICE
(This section should not be filed with the court unless required by Fed. R. Civ. P. 4 (l))
This summons for (name of individual and title, if any)
was received by me on (date)

.

’ I personally served the summons on the individual at (place)
on (date)

; or

’ I left the summons at the individual’s residence or usual place of abode with (name)
, a person of suitable age and discretion who resides there,
on (date)

, and mailed a copy to the individual’s last known address; or

’ I served the summons on (name of individual)

, who is

designated by law to accept service of process on behalf of (name of organization)
on (date)

; or

’ I returned the summons unexecuted because

; or

’ Other (specify):
.

My fees are $

for travel and $

for services, for a total of $

0.00

I declare under penalty of perjury that this information is true.

Date:
Server’s signature

Printed name and title

Server’s address

Additional information regarding attempted service, etc:

Print

Save As...

Reset

.

ClassAction.org
This complaint is part of ClassAction.org's searchable class action lawsuit database and can be found in this
post: Cuyahoga Metro Housing Authority Hit with Civil Rights Lawsuit

